A RETURN TO THE MAINS
The decade of the 1860s saw considerable change in what is now the centre of the village.  A number of the properties were built including Davidson’s Buildings, The Grange, Kinnaird, Blythewood, Albion, Happyland, Laird’s Throat, what is now Luachmohr, what is now Nechtan, and part of the property now housing the Co-op shop in the square, along with the nucleus of Roslyn.
John Bisset, the farmer at the Mains died on 1st September 1870 aged 76 years and was buried in the churchyard at Kemnay.  In 1871 his widow Mary was still staying at the Mains (we assume – as both what is now the Grange and Roslyn, were simply called “The Village”) along with her daughter Isabella (24) who was a general servant and Mary Simpson aged one who was a granddaughter of Mary Bisset.  Mary Bisset died at Haddoch, Monymusk, the home of her son-in-law Adam Gordon, on 28th May 1879 and is buried along with her husband at Kemnay.

The other two families listed under “The Village” in 1871, were: Alexander Duguid (38) a stonedresser born in Newhills, his wife Anne (37) who was born at Woodside, Aberdeen and their family Anne (9), Alexander (8), James (6) and William B (5); James Innes (22) a stonecutter from Monymusk, his wife Anne (24) from Kilsyth and their son James (1) who was born in Kemnay.
Ten years in the life of any community can bring about many changes.  By 1881, Alexander Duguid had returned Newhills parish and was staying at Snowdrop Cottage, Low Road, Auchmull.  His occupation is given as “stone dresser at quarry” and staying with him were his wife Ann, daughter Ann, a scholar, sons Alexander a stone dresser at quarry, James and apprentice clerk and William B a scholar.
James Innes had moved to Thain’s House (Happyland) in Station Road and was by this time a widower, his wife Anne having died on 17th June 1879 of erysipelas, 13 days after their daughter Grace died of whooping cough and bronchitis aged 15 months.  Barbara Fraser (61) was acting as domestic servant to James and his family; James (11), George D. (9), Peter G. (7) and Annabella (5).  James was later to marry Mary Lawrie daughter of a well known lady of the past ‘Babbie Lowrie’ who kept a lodging house at Whitestones for many years.  A small panel on the gravestone in the churchyard testifies that the memorial was manufactured in the yard of Birnie and Diack in Quincy, Mass. U.S.A. 
Both these men had connections with the village.  William Birnie worked for some time at the quarries before emigrating to the States where he worked in several areas along the east coast before settling in Quincy around 1890.  Alfred Diack was a son of Alexander Diack who had arrived in the village in the 1860s. Alexander built the block of houses called Thorpeville on Aquithie Road.  Alfred emigrated to America travelling the country and working in Texas, Colorado and California before moving to the firm of S. Henry Barnicoat in the early 1890s where William Birnie also worked.  They eventually went into partnership with each other and at one point were employing 30 men.
